
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

September 24, 2014 
3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 

1055 Ventura Ave. 
Oak View, CA 93022 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 
 a. Minutes of September 10, 2014 Meeting. 

b. Resolution nominating Russ Baggerly to fill the term of 1/1/2015 – 
1/1/2019 for the Alternate Special District Member of the Ventura 
Local Agency Formation Commission. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Bills 
 
7. Resolution awarding a contract to Brannon Inc. DBA Smith Electric 

Service in the amount of $708,200 for the HVAC Replacement – District 
Office Specification 14-372. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 1 



8. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Vista Ford in the amount of 
$25,700.71 for the purchase of a ¾ ton pickup truck with utility bed. 

  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Vista Ford in the amount of 

$36,124.05 for the purchase of a 1 ton pickup truck with dump bed.  
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Recommend approval of the renewal of the Special Liability Insurance 

Program in the amount of $63,299.31. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
11. Recommend amending the January 8, 2014 minutes, item 4 (c) to properly 

reflect the meeting of the Personnel Committee to be held on the 2nd 
Monday of the month. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
12. Discussion of the Board meeting schedule for November and December, 

2014. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff  
 
13. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Resources Minutes. 
b. Finance Committee Minutes. 
c. Recreation Area Report for July, 2014. 
d. Notice of Preparation of the Environmental Impact Report for the 

Water Supply Contract Extension Project. 
e. Investment Report. 

 
14. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Native 
Electrical Construction, Inc. v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case 
Number: 56-2014-00457255-CU-BC-VTA. 

 
15. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

 

 2 



 
Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 

Board Meeting Held 
September 10, 2014 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held September 10, 2014 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 
p.m. Directors Hicks, Bergen, Kaiser, Baggerly and Word were present.  Also 
present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the 
Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There was one staff member and no 
members of the public in attendance.  President Hicks led the group in the flag 
salute. 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum asked who is planning to attend the AWA event on 
Thursday, April 18th.  President Hicks and Director Kaiser are planning to attend. 
AWA is also conducting their annual tour on Nov 13th and the finish spot is again 
at Casitas dam.  If you have any interest in wanting to do the tour let us know. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board of the AWA Water Issues meeting with 
the City of Ventura providing the presentation.  He then discussed water 
shortages in the area. Lake Castaic is down over 100 feet and has banned 
swimming and boating.  They have from two to four years supply left.  Lake 
Cachuma is at critical levels.  Goleta Water is denying new connections due to 
water supply and the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors urged the 
public to conserve.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum then mentioned that notice was provided on water quality 
taste and odor.  We are looking at air stripping in the intake structure.  One of the 
ways to get rid of sulfur is to run air through it.  The treatment plant is struggling 
with turbidity because of turnover and having to control our pumping over the last 
couple of weeks.  Staff is doing an excellent job of maintaining water supply and 
quality.  Director Kaiser asked that the boards appreciation be conveyed to staff 
for coming up with solutions and working together.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Kaiser questioned the removal of signage regarding the bald 
eagles.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that the Park Services Manager works with a 
biologist regarding the timing of signage and when to remove it.   
 

Director Baggerly asked about any news on the motor mutes for the sound 
issue.  Mr. Wickstrum said he would find out.   
 

 1 



Director Kaiser mentioned that the Quagga ad hoc committee is trying to 
schedule a meeting with federal delegates next week on the quagga issue. 
 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 
 a. Minutes of August 27, 2014 Meeting. 

b. Recommend approval of Leak Relief in the amount of $782.59 to 
Scott Rasmussen. 

c. Resolution awarding a contract for the Ojai 3M Pump Plant 
Electrical Upgrades Specification 14-371 to Oilfield Electric and 
Motor Inc. in the amount of $99,500. 

d. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Consulting West in 
the amount of $31,200 for electrical engineering services for the 
upgrade of Avenue 2 Pump Plant’s electrical system. 

e. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Consulting West in 
the amount of $19,900 for electrical engineering services to assess 
and troubleshoot the plant’s power generator. 

 
 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 
Director Baggerly and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
   
  Resolution is numbered 14-20 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly, the bills 
were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Recommend authorizing the President of the Board to sign the Agreement 

in Principle, on behalf of the District and subcontractors for Ventura 
County’s State Water.      APPROVED 

  
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Resolution authorizing staff to apply for a grant from the California 

Department of Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways 
to prevent the infestation of Quagga and Zebra Mussels in Lake Casitas. 

 2 



          ADOPTED 
   

  The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 14-21 
 
8. Resolution setting a public hearing for consideration of an adjustment of 

5% to Board of Director’s compensation.    ADOPTED 
   
 The resolution was offered by Director Bergen, seconded by Director 
Word and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 14-22 
 
9. LAFCo Call for Nominations for Independent Special District Alternate 

Member.         
 
 Director Baggerly expressed interest in being nominated.  The motion was 
made by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Bergen and passed by the 
following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
   
10. Information Items:       APPROVED 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes 
b. Water Consumption Report. 
c. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
d. Investment Report. 

 
Mr. Mathews asked if any Directors had attended meetings for which they 

received compensation.  Director Kaiser indicated he had attended an Ojai 
Chamber meeting and President Hicks attended a Ventura Chamber meeting.  It 
was suggested an agenda item be added to the Board agenda for the Board to 
report on their meetings attended.   
 

On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed by the following roll call vote, the Information Items were approved for 
filing. 
 3 



 
AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
11. Adjournment  
 

President Hicks adjourned the meeting at 3:31 p.m. 
 
      __________________________ 
      Pete Kaiser, Secretary 

 4 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NOMINATING RUSS BAGGERLY TO FILL THE TERM OF 1/1/2015 – 
1/1/2019 FOR THE ALTERNATE SPECIAL DISTRICT MEMBER OF THE VENTURA 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
 
 

  WHEREAS, the Executive Officer of the Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo) has notified the District of a vacancy on the LAFCo for an 
alternate member representing the independent special districts in Ventura County to fill 
the term from 1/1/2015 to 1/1/2019, and has issued a call for nominations to be 
submitted in writing pursuant to California Government Code Section 56332 (c); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ventura County Independent Special District Selection 
Committee has adopted Rules and Regulations concerning vacancies on LAFCo and 
the time for consideration of candidate for appointment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Rules and Regulations of the Ventura County Independent 
Special District Selection Committee require that nominations shall be by resolution and 
candidates nominated shall submit a resume or candidate statement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at the time and in the manner required by law, the Casitas Municipal 
Water District met on September 10, 2014 to consider the call for nominations by 
LAFCo Executive Officer; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Casitas Municipal Water District 
as follows: 
 

1) Russ Baggerly is hereby nominated to fill the term beginning 1/1/2015 and 
expiring 1/1/2019 as the alternate member of the Ventura LAFCo representing 
independent special districts in Ventura County. 

2) The General Manager shall transmit a signed copy of this Resolution and a copy 
of the resume or candidate statement for Russ Baggerly to the Ventura LAFCo 
Executive Officer. 
 

Adopted this 24th day of September, 2014. 
 
AYES 
 
NOES 
 
ABSTAINS 
 
 



 
        _______________________ 
        Bill Hicks, President 
        Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District    



































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: HEATING VENTILATION AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC) REPLACEMENT-
DISTRICT OFFICE, SPECIFICATION 14-372 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 4, 2014 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution accepting the proposal 
submitted by the lowest responsible bidder and award the contract for the construction of the 
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning Replacement, Specification 14-372 to Brannon Inc 
DBA Smith Electric Service of Santa Maria, California in the amount of $708,200.  It is further 
recommended that the President of the Board execute the agreement for said work and the 
Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The existing HVAC system and electrical service panel need to be replaced because: 
 

• Existing boiler is 60 years old. 
• Existing air conditioning unit is 25 years old. 
• Existing electrical service panel is over 60 years old and new parts are no longer 

available. 
• High maintenance costs including a recent bill for over $10,000 to replace a portion of 

the control system. 
• Low energy efficiency.   

 
The new HVAC system will have the following benefits: 
 

• Higher efficiency resulting in lower utility bills.  Expected annual savings are $7500. 
• Lower maintenance costs. 
• Better controls resulting in a more comfortable and efficient building. 
• Safer electrical service panel. 

 
The project includes replacing the HVAC system, all of the mixing boxes and adding a 
dedicated cooling system for the server room.  The electrical service panel will be replaced.  
New duct work will be installed in the board room.  Because of the new duct work in the board 
room, the ceiling tiles will be replaced as well as the lighting.   
 
The replacement of the HVAC system will leave the building without heating or cooling for 



approximately 8 weeks.  The project is scheduled to begin in early November to minimize 
impacts to Casitas’ employees.  Contractor work within the office spaces will occur at night or 
on weekends. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge and on the District’s web site.   Seven bidders 
completed the mandatory job walk. Two firms submitted proposals.  The bid results are 
 

FIRM AMOUNT 
Smith Electric Service $708,200 
Anderson Construction $791,574 
 
Smith Electric Service has satisfactory completed similar projects and has a contractor’s 
license in good standing. 
 
The FY 2014-15 Capital Budget includes $600,000 to complete this portion of the project.  The 
project is 18% over budget.  The project is categorically exempt from CEQA per Section 
15301. 
 
This is the first of three phases to improve the energy efficiency of the main office from 
standards established in the 1950’s when the main office was built, to current energy 
efficiency standards.  The lighting in the remaining building areas is scheduled to be replaced 
in the next phase of the project.  The third phase of the project will replace the building 
windows.  The lighting and window replacement projects are estimated to cost a total of 
$160,000.   



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE HVAC REPLACEMENT-DISTRICT OFFICE 

SPECIFICATION 14-372 
 

WHEREAS, the District invited bids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
project, and 

 
WHEREAS, the heating, ventilation and air conditioning system for the district office is in need 

of being replaced with a modern, efficient system and 
 

WHEREAS, the District received two bids, with the lowest responsive bid submitted by 
Brannon Inc. DBA Smith Electric Service in the sum of $708,200.00 and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District as follows: 
 

1.                          1. That the bid from Brannon Inc. DBA Smith Electric Service in the amount of 
$708,200.00 be accepted for the HVAC Replacement-District Office, Specification 14-372 and a 
contract awarded. 
 

2. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of the 
contract.  

 
 

ADOPTED this 24th day of September, 2014. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Bill Hicks, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 



Memo 
To:  General Manager 

From:  Manager of Operations 

Date:  September 19, 2014 

Re:  Purchase of Replacement Vehicle  -- Project 225 

 

Recommendation:  It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a 
purchase order to Vista Ford, Oxnard in the amount of $25,700.71 for the purchase 
of a ¾ ton pickup truck with utility bed. 

 Background:  The FY 14/15 budget contains funds in the amount of $26,000.00 
for the replacement of a ¾ ton pickup truck in the Electrical/ Mechanical section.  The 
vehicle is used by the section’s electrician.  Two of the bids were very close.  The 
award was determined by application of the District’s local preference purchasing 
ordinance allowance of 5%. 

Four companies submitted bids (prices include trade in of existing vehicle) -- 

 

Vista Ford, Oxnard                              $25,700.71 

Downtown Ford, Sacramento             $25,516.52 

Paradise Chevrolet, Ventura               $30,856.74   

Winner Chevrolet, Colfax                     $31,634.87 

Wondries Fleet Services, Alhambra      No Bid 

Santa Paula Chevrolet                           No Bid 

Ford of Ventura                                      No Bid 

Wm. Morris Chevrolet, Filmore              No Bid   

Casitas M.W.D. 

 Page 1 



Memo 
To:  General Manager 

From:  Manager of Operations 

Date:  September 19, 2014 

Re:  Purchase of Replacement Vehicle  -- Project 229 

 

Recommendation:  It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a 
purchase order to Vista Ford, Oxnard in the amount of $36,124.05 for the purchase 
of a 1 ton pickup truck with dump bed. 

 Background:  The FY 14/15 budget contains funds in the amount of $35,000.00 
for the replacement of a 1 ton pickup truck in the District Maintenance section.  The 
vehicle is used as the section’s crew truck .  Two of the bids were very close.  The 
award was determined by application of the District’s local preference purchasing 
ordinance allowance of 5%. 

Six companies submitted bids (prices include trade in of existing vehicle) -- 

 

Vista Ford, Oxnard                                   $36,124.05 

Downtown Ford, Sacramento                  $35,689.97 

Paradise Chevrolet, Ventura                    $39,281.59   

Winner Chevrolet, Colfax                         $39,770.05 

Wondries Fleet Services, Alhambra        $42,249.98 

Santa Paula Chevrolet                                 No Bid 

Ford of Ventura                                            No Bid 

Wm. Morris Chevrolet, Fillmore               $38,121.80    

Casitas M.W.D. 

 Page 1 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  September 19, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Renewal of Special Liability Insurance Program 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize payment of $63,299.31 to Alliant 
Insurance Services, Inc. for the renewal of the Special Liability Insurance (SLIP) for coverage 
effective 9/29/14 – 9/29/15.  
 
BACKGROUND:    
 
The District’s insurance broker, Alliant Insurance Services has successfully renewed coverage 
for the SLIP program with AmTrust Insurance Group effective September 29, 2014.  This 
renewal is $408.48 above the renewal cost for coverage last year. 
 
If the District is interested in securing Terrorism Insurance Coverage, the District may elect to do 
so with the understanding that the District would receive an invoice for an additional 5% of the 
annual premium for the SLIP coverage. 
 
In order for our liability coverage to be renewed under the SLIP program, payment of the 
premium must be made by September 29, 2014. 
 
 







CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  September 19, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Amendment to minutes of January 8, 2014 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors amend the minutes of the January 8, 2014 
meeting to reflect the correct date for the Personnel Committee.  
 
BACKGROUND:    
 
The meeting date for the Personnel Committee should be modified in the amended January 8, 
2014 minutes to be the Second Monday of the month at 4:30 p.m.  Personnel Committee 
meetings are held at Casitas Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak 
View. 
 



Amended Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

January 8, 2014 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held January 8, 2014 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Word, Hicks, Bergen, Kaiser and 
Baggerly were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
three staff members and five members of the public in attendance.  President 
Word led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported on a meeting with a Bureau of Reclamation 
representative out of Sacramento and discussion on the Safety of Dams. The 
representative reviewed the completed work and the scouring that occurred.  A 
subsequent conversation was that the Bureau would approach the slides that 
occurred 13 years ago as a SOD issue if it got beyond the surface rock. We 
would like to bring a draft letter and agreement to the board at the next meeting 
to request the Bureau move ahead with their process. There will be some cost 
adjustments because of the work on the stability berm toe. Director Bergen 
asked if the slide information will be in writing.  Mr. Wickstrum replied it will be in 
writing and in the comprehensive facility reviews. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum then reported that he and Mr. Merckling will meet with the 
City of Ventura on Monday.  Mr. Merckling is working on a press release 
regarding drought and where we stand with Lake Casitas. Villanova reservoir 
project is proceeding.  This project has caused some stress to the system and 
we are operating some of our pumps manually.  We will try to arrange a time for 
board members to see the project when it is safer. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Word mentioned the AWA meeting and to let the clerk know if you 
are interested in attending.   
 

Director Baggerly asked if we are on track for completion of the Senior 
Canyon project. Mr. Wickstrum replied that he received a call on December 31st 
from Larry letting us know they had completed the installation.  Ron has followed 
up with inspection and submitting the paperwork.  The agreement will be 
reviewed to see if there is any additional follow up that needs to be done. 
 
4. Board, Committee, and Meeting Approvals   APPROVED 
 

a. Election of Board Officers 
 
 1 



The Board Officers for 2014 are as follows: 
 
President  Bill Hicks 
Vice President Mary Bergen 
Secretary  Pete Kaiser 
Asst. Secretary Russ Baggerly 
 
On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly and 

passed by the following roll call vote, the officers were approved. 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

b. Discussion and approval of meetings that will be considered 
authorized meetings for the Board. 

 
The board reviewed the meetings and approved them upon a motion from 

Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and passed by the following roll call 
vote: 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  c. Selection of Board Committee assignments and dates of meetings. 

 
The Board selected the following committee assignments: 

 
Executive  Bill Hicks, Mary Bergen  1st Tuesday at 9:30 a.m. 
Personnel  Russ Baggerly, Pete Kaiser 2nd Monday at 4:30 p.m. 
Water Resources Russ Baggerly, Pete Kaiser 3rd Monday at 9:30 a.m.  
Recreation  Bill Hicks, Jim Word   1st Monday at 9:30 a.m. 
Finance  Mary Bergen, Jim Word  3rd Friday at 9:30 a.m. 
 
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word and 
passed, the authorized meetings and committee assignments were approved by 
the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the December 11, 2013 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval for Leak Relief to Charles Cantello. 
c. Resolution approving Memberships for 2014.  

 
 Director Baggerly asked to pull item c for discussion. 
 
 2 



 The Consent Agenda, minus item c was offered by Director Kaiser, 
seconded by Director Bergen and passed with the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
 On item c, Director Baggerly asked about memberships for WCVC with 
Mr. Wickstrum explaining that it is not a membership fee; it is a contribution by 
agencies to pay for the time and efforts for the watershed coordinator. Director 
Baggerly then asked if we are going to be a member of Salmonid Restoration 
Federation.  Mr. Wickstrum said there is a small $35 individual fee we can 
consider with application to attend the conference. Director Kaiser asked about 
the Water Fitness Association.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that is associated with 
water fitness activities at the Water Adventure.  
 
 The resolution for item c was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by 
Director Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
 Resolution is numbered 14-01. 
 
6. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Bergen asked about #019621 for boat damage.  Mr. Wickstrum 
explained this was to repair damage to a boat when staff scratched it with the air 
canister while checking to see if it was clean and dry.  This was the cost to repair 
the damage. 
 

President Hicks asked about the Tyler Tech software upgrade.  Mr. 
Wickstrum explained this is for our accounting system, software and license 
agreement. 
 

The bills were approved upon the motion of Director Word, seconded by 
Director Baggerly and passed by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Update on Casitas Action as a result of Quagga Mussels at Lake Piru. 
 
 Mr. Wickstrum discussed the finding of quagga mussels at Lake Piru. Staff 
has been in communication with Lake Piru and on December 20th I took 
emergency action to extend the ten day quarantine to 28 days given the research 
that states the quagga mussel can sustain life for 27 days in cool climate.  We 
may be bringing some recommendations to the board at a later date. What we 
 3 



are operating under right now is the strictest in the state.  We will continue to 
communicate with United Water Conservation District and continue to safeguard 
our reservoir as much as we humanly can. 
 

Director Baggerly passed out some thoughts he had and suggested that 
the quagga threat is even closer and we need to strengthen our defenses.  We 
need to protect ourselves from watercraft that may be infected with quagga 
mussels.  After discussion on various recommendations the board suggested 
creation of an ad hoc committee to review the program. 

 
 Upon the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed by roll call vote, an ad hoc committee of Director Baggerly and Director 
Kaiser was established to review quagga issues. 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
8. Resolution finding that a Public Necessity Requires the Subcontracting of 

a Portion of the Villanova Reservoir Repairs & Interior Coating, 
Specification 13-367 Project.     ADOPTED 

 
 The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 Resolution is numbered 14-02. 
 
9. Recommend approval of Staffing Changes at Lake Casitas Recreation 

Area.         APPROVED 
 

Mr. Wickstrum explained that there has been a lot of consideration and 
work on what to do given the issues these last months on part time employment, 
health insurance requirements, limits to temporary staff and how do we work 
there to keep staffing levels appropriate.  Additionally, the last year and a half we 
have staffed the recreation area on a 24/7 basis to safeguard the lake. The 
recommended changes include using full time positions in lieu of part time. 
 

President Hicks asked about the current number of full time employees 
and that about ten years ago we had 42 full time employees.  Mr. Wickstrum 
added that 30 years ago we had close to 70 full time employees.  We have 
brought on a lot of additional things such as the fish ladder, water conservation 
and safety.  Director Bergen added that in reviewing the financials and budgets 
of the district the biggest changes have been in water conservation and fisheries. 
It will be a benefit to have full time personnel with areas of responsibilities. 
Things have changed enough that having full time personnel can be important. 
 

 4 



 Upon the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Kaiser and 
passed by roll call vote, the above recommendation was approved. 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Area Report for November, 2013. 
b. CSDA How to be an Effective Board Member. 
c. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
d. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
e. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
f. Finance Committee Minutes. 
g. Water Consumption Report. 
h. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
i. Investment Report. 

 
11. Adjournment  
 
 President Hicks adjourned the meeting at 4:07 p.m. 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
 

 5 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  September 19, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Board Meetings Dates in November and December of 2014 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors discuss their board meeting schedule for the 
second meetings in November and December 2014 as the regularly scheduled meetings fall on 
or before a holiday.  
 
BACKGROUND:    
 
The second Board meeting in November is scheduled for November 26th which is the day before 
Thanksgiving.  Some years the board has rescheduled this meeting to earlier in the week, or 
earlier in the day. 
 
The second Board meeting in December is scheduled for December 24th.  In the past, the board 
has either cancelled the second meeting in December or rescheduled it to a different day. 
 
Should the Board desire to reschedule or cancel a meeting, a resolution to do so will be brought 
back to the next board meeting for adoption.  
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:   September 17, 2014 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:   Water Resources Committee Meeting of September 15, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Pete Kaiser and Director Russ Baggerly  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Public Affairs/Resource Manager, Ron Merckling 
  

2. Public comments.  None 
 

3. Board/Management Comments. 
Director Baggerly requested of Mr. Merckling to change the website reference to the Community 
Facilities District (CFD Ojai) to a more prominent title and location.  This should improve public access 
to documents related to the Golden State Water Company acquisition. 
 
The General Manager informed the Committee that the Lake Casitas water quality has been challenging 
the past several weeks as Lake Casitas declines in storage and the lake turn-over has started earlier 
this year.  The Committee recognized the efforts of staff during these challenges. 

 
4. Update on Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

The Committee reviewed the draft Plan and provided additional information, comments and changes.  
The Committee discussed the timing for the Plan review, adoption and implementation.   
 
Staff has begun the initial planning for accounting system changes that compares individual customer 
water allocation assignments with water use, and applies a conservation surcharge where water use 
exceeds the allocation.  There are several factors regarding this work that lead to an implementation of 
the allocation billing system beginning July 1, 2015.  The factors include: 

a) It will take approximately until May 2015 to complete the accounting system programming; 
b) Casitas customer meter changes to provide for monthly reading will be completed in March 

2015: 
c) Accounting system test runs will be needed after programming to assure appropriate billing; 
d) Accounting changes are preferred to occur upon the fiscal year change to avoid unusual 

reporting.  
 

The Committee recognizes that Lake Casitas will likely decline to 50 percent capacity by the end of 
November 2014 (if no rain events) and that the District should be prepared to educate customers during 
the 2015 Winter on the upcoming changes that will be applied on July 1, 2015.  In accordance with the 
Plan, in April 2015 the General Manager will provide recommendations for any necessary actions to 
reduce water demands. 
 

 1 



Mr. Merckling presented an overview of the current water use and initial allocation assignments for 
various customer classifications.  The Committee discussed the availability of allocations. 
 
The General Manager will finish the draft Plan and meet with various customers to build support for the 
Plan.  The Plan will be moved to the Board for consideration when completed. 

 2 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Finance Committee 

 
DATE:   September 19, 2014 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of September 19, 2014, at 0930 hours 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Mary Bergen and Director Jim Word  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager, Denise Collin 
  

2. Public comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Management comments.  None. 

  
4. Review of the Financial Statement for August 2014. 

The Committee reviewed the district’s revenues, interest gains, expenditures, and salaries and 
overtime expenditures in various budgets.  It is noted that there is an increase in water revenue 
due to drought water conditions. 

 
5. Review of the Water Consumption for August 2014. 

The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for the current fiscal year through 
August 2014.  There are notable increases in water sales to the resale classification that are 
primarily influenced by the lack of rainfall and groundwater replenishment.   

 
6. Discussion and review of the Leak Relief Program. 

Denise Collin presented a survey of leak relief offered by other local water agencies. The 
Committee discussed the pros and cons of this program, suggested modifications to be 
considered in the Rates and Regulations for Water Service, and suggested that the program’s 
suspension or level of relief be at the discretion of the Board during various stages of Lake 
Casitas.  The committee considered that the dollar amount of relief requested each year has 
been relatively small. 
 

7. HVAC bid for replacement of the District Office HVAC system.  
The General Manager presented the bid results to the Committee for discussion.  The direction 
from the Committee is to move this bid proposal forward to the Board. 
 

8. Review of bids for truck purchases. 
The General Manager presented bids received for the one-ton dump truck and ¾-ton electrician’s 
truck.  The direction from the Committee is to move both bid proposals forward to the Board. 
 

 1 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  August 28, 2014  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for July 2014 
 
Visitation Numbers 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for July 2014:   
 

 July 2014 July 2013 June 2014 
Visitor Days 85,220 95,420 61,516 
Camps 9,349 10,238 5,752 
Cars 21,305 23,855 15,379 
Boats 179 273 219 
Kayaks & Canoes 12 3 3 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2013/2014 95,420 
2014/2015 85,220 
% Change -10.690 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating  
There were 7 cables sold for new inspections, 4 vessels were re-inspected and a total of 500 vessels 
were retagged. Three vessels failed the first inspection in July 2014. 
 
Night fishing from shore was held July 10, 11 and 12. 
 
Operations 
The movie Wall-E was screened on July 5th and Hook was screened July 26th with approximately 100 
and 25 participants respectively, Astronomy Night was held July 12th and had 32 participants. The Ojai 
Trolley Saturday service started July 5th and had an average of 200 customers taking advantage of the 
free service to and from the City of Ojai and several loops around the Recreation Area each Saturday.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 



Incidents  
Incidents in the Recreation Area for the month of July 2014 that required assistance from outside 
agencies included: two domestic disputes, three burn victims two of them children, shots fired near the 
eagle nest, medical laceration, a report of a laser pointer, attempted burglary, arrest for public 
intoxication, three separate head injuries at the Casitas Water Adventure and a possible allergic 
reaction.  

Revenue Reporting 
The unaudited figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the 
respective month (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial 
Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 

$640,000.00

$650,000.00

$660,000.00

$670,000.00

$680,000.00

$690,000.00

$700,000.00

$710,000.00

July

FY 13/14
FY 14/15

    

 
 

2 

















   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

09/18/14

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,381,049 $1,324,647 1.625% 10/03/2012 9.09% 1706

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $944,275 3.027% 06/18/2014 6.48% 3699

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 08/14/2024 $126,966 $123,544 2.500% 07/03/2014 0.85% 3566

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OS73 10/11/2022 $699,720 $669,340 2.430% 08/11/2014 4.59% 2903

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381ST3 01/17/2023 $250,346 $244,435 1.500% 09/08/2014 1.68% 2999

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 01/17/2023 $277,619 $268,983 2.240% 09/08/2014 1.85% 2999

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EAZM3 07/24/2023 $1,658,682 $1,648,247 2.380% 09/16/2014 11.31% 3186

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $708,329 $666,753 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.57% 2423

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $704,551 $713,839 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.90% 264

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/2015 $723,066 $736,169 4.750% 07/19/2010 5.05% 419

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $818,165 2.500% 07/03/2014 5.61% 3642

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $689,407 $692,323 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.75% 777

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,115,725 $1,119,730 5.125% 01/03/2012 7.68% 1139

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $682,912 $657,380 2.375% 09/08/2014 4.51% 2635

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,153,120 $1,175,928 1.375% 07/06/2010 8.07% 1377

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/2014 $700,832 $702,870 2.125% 07/01/2010 4.82% 72

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/2020 $1,137,802 $1,174,866 1.375% 07/01/2010 8.06% 1917

*TB US Treasury Bond 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,703 $778,625 2.613% 12/13/2013 5.34% 3297

Accrued Interest $115,997

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $14,607,632 $14,576,115 80.15%

*CD cit Salt Lake City UT - CD 12/18/2023 $245,000 $243,300 3.30%

*CD Discover BK Greenwood DE - CD 01/16/2024 $239,000 $235,587 3.20%

*CD GE Capital - CD Draper, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $243,219 3.25%

*CD GE Capital - CD Salt Lake City, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $241,327 3.15%

*CD Goldman Sachs  - CD New York, NY 10/30/2023 $224,000 $224,255 3.25%

*CD Toyota Financial Services - CD -Henderson NV 12/20/2023 $245,000 $243,408 3.30%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $1,443,000 $1,431,096 7.87%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $446 $446 0.23% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,178,040 $2,178,040 0.35% Estimated 11.98%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,229,118 $18,185,697 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $17,204,078 $17,322,070

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,170,205 $18,347,885

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,839,223 $4,839,223

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $702 $702 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $23,069,043 $23,025,622

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $20,393,772 $20,571,452

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	09-24-14 Agenda
	09-10-14 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	September 10, 2014

	Reso LAFCo
	Bill list
	award-hvac (1)
	Resolution HVAC
	Truck - E&M (1)
	Truck - Dist Maint (1)
	Memo re SLIP
	Slip renewal
	Memo re Ammended minutes
	01-08-14 Min ammended
	Amended Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	January 8, 2014

	Memo re board meetings
	Water Res Minutes 09 15 2014
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Fin Minutes 09 19 2014
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	LCRA 07Jul.2014 (1)
	NOP - EIR for Water Supply Contract Extension Project
	Investment Report 09-18-2014

